
  BBooaarrdd  ooff  
CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss MMeeeettiinngg  

JJuullyy 5, 22002222  



 
July 1, 2022  3:30:15 PM 

 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

JULY 5, 2022 
COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM & LIVESTREAM ON FACEBOOK 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Johnson 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes for June 6, 2022 Regular Meeting 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution 2022-023 Appointing Review Officer 
d) FY23 Salary Schedule/COLA Adjustments 
e) Statutory Re-Appointment of Tax Assessor/Collector 
f) Response to Auditor’s Findings 
g) Resolution 2022-024 July is Parks & Recreation Month 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3   6:20 PM  Department Information Update: Facilities, Mr. Louis Boone, Director 
 
Item 4  6:40 PM Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM “In God We Trust” in County Buildings, Mr. Rick Lanier, US Motto Committee 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Washington Regional Medical Center Update, Mr. Frank Avignone, CEO Affinity 

Health Partners 
    
Item 7 7:10 PM NCACC Voting Delegate, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 8 7:20 PM   Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 9 7:30 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
  
Item 10 7:40 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
Item 11 7:50 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  

(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
      

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes for June 6, 2022 Regular Meeting. See attachments at the end of 
the package. 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts—See attachment 

c) Resolution 2022-023 Appointing Review Officer—See attachment 
With the retirement of Mr. Harry White and with Mr. Richard 
Livingston taking over GIS, Mr. White needs to be removed as a Review 
Office for the recording of maps and plats and Mr. Livingston needs to 
be added. This is done by resolution following NCGS 47-30.2. 

 
d) FY23 Salary Schedule/COLA Adjustments—See attachment 

 
e) Statutory Re-Appointment of Tax Assessor/Collector—See attachments 

According to the attached statutes, Ms. Sherri Wilkins needs to be re-
appointed as Washington County’s Tax Assessor/Tax Collector for 
another four-year term. 

 
f) Response to Auditor’s Findings—See attachment 

 
g) Resolution 2022-023 July is Parks & Recreation Month—See attachment 

 
 

 
 















 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2022-023 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING REVIEW OFFICER 

 
 

WHEREAS, S.L. 1997-309 (Senate Bill 875) makes a number of significant changes in 
the procedures for recording maps and plats; and 
 

WHEREAS, the new G.S. 47-30.2 required the Board of Commissioners in each County, 
by resolution, to appoint one or more persons experienced in mapping or land records 
management as Review Officer to review each plat before it is recorded and certify that it meets 
the statutory requirements for recording; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Washington County Board of Commissioners to insure 
an expeditious review of all maps and plats as required by G.S. 47-30.2 before they are 
presented to the Register of Deeds for Recording. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Richard Livingston, Connie Barnes, and 
Sherri Wilkins are hereby appointed to perform all the responsibilities as required for Review 
Officer. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following previous appointees are no longer 
designated as Review Officers, including but not limited to:  Tim Esolen, Stephanie Hendrix, 
Debbie Askew, Lionel West, Brad Parker, Phyllis Ange, Ann Keyes, and Harry White. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution designating the Review 

Officers to be recorded in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office and indexed in the 
names of the Review Officers pursuant to new G.S. 47-30.2, and that this Resolution shall 
become effective July 5, 2022 as specified in S.L. 1997-309. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 5th day of July 2022. 
 
      _____________________________________ 
         Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
             Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


FY23 Budget Ordinance Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

                 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

FAX (252) 793-1183 

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: July 5th, 2022   MEMO Date: June 30th, 2022                     ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  FY23 Salary Schedule Amendments & 2.5% COLA Adjustments 
DEPARTMENT: Finance/HR 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- FY23 Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Combined County Non-DSS) – Revised/Effective 7/16/22 (1page) 
B- FY23 Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS) – Revised/Effective 7/16/22 (1page) 

 
PURPOSE: To adopt an updated and revised Salary Schedule for FY23 reflecting i) a 2.5% Cost of Living 
Adjustments (COLA) approved by the Board during its recent adoption of the FY23 Budget, and ii) grade 
modifications for certain specific positions as discussed with the Board during the budget process. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The FY23 Budget Message contained a recommended 2.5% COLA for all full-time employees 
as well as several proposed position regrades which were approved by the Board during its adoption of the FY23 
budget.  During the budget process the County Manager also reviewed several additional positions previously 
flagged for further review in order to bring the overall YORE based progressive pay plan into alignment.  Based on 
this review and discussions with Board members, the County Manager recommends 5 additional positions be 
regraded, with offsetting lower applicable step modifications to be determined by the County Manager in 
accordance with the YORE based progressive pay plan. 
  
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS/IMPACTS:   

- $227,430 is the estimated cost of implementing a countywide 2.5% COLA and was approved as part of 
the FY23 Budget. 
 

- $23,000 is the estimated cost of implementing the originally recommended equity adjustments and 
position regrades as described in the FY23 Budget Message and was approved as part of the FY23 
Budget. 
 

- $N/A is the estimated cost of implementing the additional recommended position regrades.  Higher grade 
values are anticipated to be offset by lower applicable step values to be determined by the County 
Manager in accordance with YORE. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 

JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



FY23 Budget Ordinance Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS: 

 
- Substantive changes contained in the attached FY23 Salary Schedules which were originally proposed 

and recently approved as part of the FY23 Budget include:  
 

o Housekeepers moved from GR6 to GR8 for County & DSS 
o Senior Center Nutrition Program Manager moved from GR8 to GR10 
o Transit Drivers moved from DSS GR53 to DSS GR61 

 
o GIS Director replaced with Senior Project Manager on same GR20 

 
o Uncertified Deputies and Uncertified Detention Officers were removed from the plan altogether 

in an effort to address ongoing recruitment and retention issues faced within these departments. 
 

o An increase of 2.5% applied to all schedule values rounded to whole dollars to reflect the 
implementation of the 2.5% COLA. 
 

- Additional modifications in the attached FY23 Salary Schedules proposed by the County Manager to 
bring certain positions into better overall alignment with the County’s most recently conducted salary 
compensation study, and to assist in the administration of the YORE based progressive pay system 
include: 

 
o Utilities Director GR44 lowered to GR 39 as justified by the most recently conducted salary 

compensation study and to reflect the removal of Landfill related duties from this position. 
 

o Register of Deeds GR25 increased to GR27, with an offsetting lower applicable step modification 
to be determined by the County Manager in accordance with YORE. 
 

o Planning Director GR36 has been modified to Planning Director/Building Insp (Dual Role) and 
increased to GR40, with an offsetting lower applicable step modification to be determined by the 
County Manager in accordance with YORE. 
 

o Emergency Management Coordinator GR28 increased to GR31, with an offsetting lower 
applicable step modification to be determined by the County Manager in accordance with YORE. 
 

o Sheriff Position GR43 increased to GR45, with an offsetting lower applicable step modification 
to be determined by the County Manager in accordance with YORE. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  

 
1. Approve the attached FY23 Salary Schedule to become effective 

7/16/22 

 



Grade Position Title #POS Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Ind 112 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Veteran's Service Officer PT
Maintenance Worker I 3
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
EMT Basic 10
Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 0
Utility Customer Service Rep 2
Accounting Technician 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
WCSO Animal Control Officer 1
Landfill Operator 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 3
Administrative Asst 3
WCSO Administrative Deputy 1
Detention Officer 8
EMT Intermediate 3
Maintenance Worker II 1
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert 7
Detention Corporal 3
Water Treatment Plant Operator 1
Code Enforement Officer 1

16 Chief Landfill Operator 1 $30,253 $31,020 $31,775 $32,582 $33,374 $34,219 $35,051 $35,947 $36,842 $37,777 $38,724 $39,658 $40,681 $41,655 $42,730 $43,779 $44,874
Airport Manager 1
Detention - Lieutenant 1
Recreation Director 1
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
WCSO Deputy I 7
EMT Paramedic 9
EMS Shift Supervisor 0
Senior Center Director 1
Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1
WCSO Deputy II 2
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Senior Project Manager 1
WCSO School Resource Officer 3
911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1
WCSO Corporal 2
Maintenance Supervisor 1
IT Systems Operator 1
WCSO Sergeant 2

23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $37,355 $38,263 $39,210 $40,247 $41,232 $42,230 $43,280 $44,368 $45,480 $46,632 $47,771 $48,974 $50,190 $51,444 $52,737 $54,042 $55,393
WCSO Investigator 3
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1

26 Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1 $40,400 $41,386 $42,397 $43,510 $44,572 $45,673 $46,825 $47,988 $49,204 $50,420 $51,687 $52,967 $54,285 $55,642 $57,036 $58,444 $59,906
WCSO Lieutenant 2
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1

31 Emergency Mgmt Coord 1 $45,443 $46,581 $47,733 $48,923 $50,152 $51,419 $52,686 $53,991 $55,322 $56,742 $58,137 $59,596 $61,093 $62,616 $64,177 $65,777 $67,421
WCSO Chief Deputy 1
EMS Deputy Director 1
Tax Administrator 1

37 EMS Director 1 $51,508 $52,813 $54,144 $55,500 $56,870 $58,303 $59,737 $61,221 $62,770 $64,318 $65,943 $67,569 $69,283 $70,985 $72,764 $74,593 $76,458
39 Utilities Director 1 $53,556 $54,861 $56,256 $57,664 $59,109 $60,568 $62,065 $63,627 $65,214 $66,864 $68,528 $70,256 $71,983 $73,787 $75,630 $77,511 $79,449
40 Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1 $54,579 $55,949 $57,317 $58,777 $60,223 $61,708 $63,243 $64,856 $66,468 $68,119 $69,821 $71,574 $73,352 $75,169 $77,332 $78,996 $80,971

Finance Officer 1
45 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $60,509 $62,044 $63,578 $65,178 $66,805 $68,470 $70,175 $71,959 $73,744 $75,579 $77,469 $79,409 $81,391 $83,437 $85,509 $87,674 $89,866

FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92, Sheriff & ROD Pay has been exempt from YORE based step progression; but for FY23 is expected to be adjusted in accordance with YORE/regrade of positions. 
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY22 Note:  Two additional Certified Deputy I Positions to Take Over Courthouse Security
FY23 Note: Actual compensation amounts for NCSU Coop Extension Staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression compared to regular county staff
Recent COLAs: 2% 2013; 2% 2015; 2% 2018; 2.5% 2023

FY23 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Combined County Non-DSS) - Revised/Effective: 7/16/2022

$61,413$49,204 $50,420 $51,687 $52,967 $54,298 $55,654 $57,036 $58,457 $59,916

$22,140 $22,689 $23,266 $23,854 $24,417 $25,070 $25,671 $30,509 $31,237 $32,044 $32,845

11 $25,185 $25,825 $26,477

$26,324 $26,976 $27,629 $28,333 $29,012 $29,779

$36,446 $37,357$33,029 $33,848 $34,719 $35,589

$33,311 $34,143 $34,988

8

12 $26,184 $26,874 $27,527 $28,231 $28,909

$31,455 $32,223$27,117 $27,808 $28,487 $29,215 $29,907 $30,662

$38,879$29,664 $30,355 $31,122 $31,903 $32,697 $33,503

$37,482 $38,391$29,305 $30,023 $30,777 $31,571

$34,334 $35,192 $36,088 $36,984 $37,931

$39,415 $40,401

14 $28,243 $28,922 $29,677

$32,351 $33,144 $34,002 $34,821 $35,691 $36,574

$40,835 $41,856$37,022 $37,943 $38,891 $39,863

13 $27,193 $27,885 $28,563

15 $29,254 $29,958 $30,713 $31,494 $32,262

$35,205 $36,114$30,368 $31,135 $31,916 $32,722 $33,542 $34,360

$43,365$33,081 $33,912 $34,757 $35,628 $36,497 $37,406

$43,062 $44,137$33,657 $34,502 $35,371 $36,254

$38,314 $39,287 $40,310 $41,296 $42,307

$45,238 $46,369

18 $32,275 $33,106 $33,912

$37,150 $38,084 $39,031 $39,990 $41,001 $42,051

$46,735 $47,903$42,320 $43,369 $44,495 $45,545

17 $31,251 $32,044 $32,851

19 $33,311 $34,130 $34,962 $35,845 $36,715

$40,310 $41,309$34,770 $35,640 $36,510 $37,431 $38,341 $39,287

$43,663 $44,725 $45,878 $47,016 $48,168 $49,372$37,623 $38,634 $39,569 $40,541 $41,540 $42,615

$50,894

21 $35,294 $36,190 $37,111

$40,759 $41,770 $42,819 $43,881 $44,982 $46,108

$51,124 $52,402$46,287 $47,029 $48,654 $49,870

20 $34,297 $35,154 $36,024 $36,920

$44,073 $45,199$38,033 $38,980 $39,940 $40,913 $41,975 $43,011

$49,653$37,892 $38,813 $39,787 $47,247 $48,450

$54,259 $55,616

22 $36,344 $37,278 $38,161 $39,108 $40,055

$67,261 $68,606

25 $39,402 $40,375 $41,360 $42,371 $43,472 $44,547 $45,609

$47,643 $48,821 $50,062 $51,304 $52,596 $53,911$41,104 $42,128 $43,165 $44,239 $45,379 $46,491

$56,972 $58,397

32 $46,440 $47,618 $48,796

$46,799 $47,938 $49,128 $50,369 $51,649 $52,928

27 $41,386 $42,397 $43,523 $44,572 $45,673 $46,837 $47,988

$65,175

$57,996 $59,455 $60,927 $62,450 $64,023 $65,623$50,024 $51,290 $52,570 $53,863 $55,207 $56,576

10 $24,187 $24,775 $25,390 $26,042 $26,670 $27,361 $32,492 $35,862$28,026 $28,743 $29,433 $30,189 $30,931 $31,686

$77,473 $79,406 $81,402 $83,424 $85,535 $87,674$66,800 $68,464 $70,204 $71,945 $73,736 $75,57944 $59,033 $60,530 $62,027 $63,588



Grade Job Title #POS Step 1/A1 Step 2/A2 Step 3/B1 Step 4/B2 Step 5/B3 Step 6/C1 Step 7/C2 Step 8/C3 Step 9/D1 Step 10/D2 Step 11/D3 Step 12/E1 Step 13/E2 Step 14/E3 Step 15/F1 Step 16/F2 Step 17/F3
Years of Relevant Experience (YORE) Index: 58 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

52 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $22,140 $22,689 $23,266 $23,854 $24,417 $25,070 $25,671 $26,324 $26,976 $27,629 $28,333 $29,012 $29,779 $30,509 $31,237 $32,044 $32,845
Processing Assistant V 2
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Admin Asst I 1
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 4
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 4
CS Supervisor I 1
IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Admin Asst III/Transp Coordinator 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

68 Computer System Administrator I 0 $36,254 $37,162 $38,097 $39,044 $39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735
69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $38,097 $39,044 $39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460

Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 0
Computer System Administrator I 1

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894 $59,339 $60,812 $62,321 $63,857 $65,483 $67,056 $68,720
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894 $59,339 $60,812 $62,321 $63,857 $65,483 $67,056 $68,720 $70,486 $72,265 $74,043 $75,887
81 Social Services Director 1 $70,342 $72,032 $73,819 $75,716 $77,627 $79,537 $81,517 $83,565 $85,641 $87,772 $89,971 $92,211 $94,507 $96,886 $99,305 $101,765 $104,281

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance

FY23 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS) - Revised/Effective: 7/16/22

61 $25,748 $26,414 $27,041

63 $28,409 $29,088 $29,818 $30,534 $31,289 $32,057

$32,876$28,409 $29,088 $29,818 $30,534 $31,289 $32,057$27,732

$38,097 $39,044 $39,978 $40,925 $41,924$32,876 $33,682 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162

$38,097$33,682 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162

67 $34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162 $38,097 $39,044

$39,978$34,578 $35,410 $36,254 $37,162 $38,097 $39,04465 $31,289 $32,057 $32,876 $33,682

$39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289

$46,364$40,925 $41,924 $42,998 $44,073 $45,289

$39,978 $40,925 $41,924 $42,998

$46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,858 $51,150

$59,339$51,150 $52,352 $53,735 $55,027 $56,460 $57,894$44,073 $45,289 $46,364 $47,426 $48,654 $49,85870









Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

 
 
 
June 24, 2022 
 
 
 
NC Department of State Treasurer 
State and Local Government Finance Division 
and the Local Government Commission 
3200 Atlantic Avenue 
Raleigh, NC  27604 
 
Dear Ms. McCullen: 
 
In response to the requirement for a county’s governing body to develop a “Response to the Auditor’s 
Findings, Recommendations, and Fiscal Matters regarding Financial Performance Indicators that are 
highlighted as areas of concern for FYE 2021”, please find our responses below: 
 
Finding 2021-01  Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations 
  
The county agrees with this finding.  In preparation of learning and understanding the new GASB 84 
Standard regarding Representative Payee funds, staff inadvertently overlooked the requirement that an annual 
budget should have been adopted for this fund until working with the Contracted CPA at which time it was 
too late to take a budget amendment before the board.  This was a complete oversight as staff was diligently 
working to prepare all entries needed to move this from an Agency Fund as previously reported to a 
Representative Payee Fund.  This has been corrected.  This new fund has been and will continue to be 
budgeted during the annual budgeting process and approved by the Board of Commissioners.  Budget 
Amendments will be done and taken before the Board throughout the year when adjustments may be needed 
for reasons such as clients being added or monthly receipts increasing.  Staff will continue to work with the 
Contracted CPA to help ensure that new GASB Standards are implemented timely. 
 
 
Page 2 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL” R. SEXTON, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

County Response to FPIC 
 
Stewardship – Deficit New Position – Sanitation Fund  
 
The county agrees with this finding.  The Sanitation Fund reported a deficit of $388,012 at FYE 2021 
however this was a vast improvement from the year before when the deficit was $498,697.  For the most part, 
this deficit is attributable to the estimated closure and post-closure costs of the landfill.  Management has 
taken a hard look at this over the last several years and as indicated in the Notes Section of the Financial 
Statements anticipates funding the current deficit over the next four years or until the deficit is satisfactorily 
resolved using a combination of strategies including 1) reviewing current landfill policies and practices to 
increase revenues including charges to end users where justified and to maintain or decrease current 
expenses, 2) potentially recommending to the governing body that it approve the transfer of funds from the 
general fund to the sanitation fund for use to help offset the impact of any major non-routine capital expenses, 
3) continuing to recommend to the governing body that no further cost allocation transfers from the sanitation 
fund be made, and/or 4) recommend the governing body consider adopting a formal proactive post closure 
expense funding policy and begin appropriating regular annual allocations pursuant to such policy toward 
such future expenses to help reduce the overall liability contributing to the deficit. 
 
We anticipate the closure and post-closure liability to increase at a more moderate rate than in the past couple 
of years which were made very difficult due to a number of large DOT bridge replacement projects that 
quickly filled the landfill to capacity.  We have just completed and received approval to expand the capacity 
of the landfill which should help.  Management will continue to monitor this fund and look for ways to shore 
up its financial stability.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns in regards to Washington County’s above response, please do not 
hesitate to contact us at your convenience.  We look forward to continuing to work with the Local 
Government Commission in good faith to monitor and manage our finances in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
____________________________________            _______________________________ 
Tracey Johnson, Chair                     Julius Walker, Jr., Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________            _______________________________ 
Ann Keyes , Commissioner              Carol Phelps, Commissioner 
 
 
_____________________________________            _______________________________ 
William “Bill” Sexton, Jr., Commissioner            Curtis Potter, County Manager/Attorney 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Missy Dixon, Finance Officer 



 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-024 

DESIGNATION OF JULY AS  
PARK AND RECREATION MONTH 

 
 WHEREAS, parks and recreation is an integral part of communities throughout 
this country, including Washington County; and 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation promotes health and wellness, improving the 

physical and mental health of people who live near parks; and 
 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation promotes time spent in nature, which positively 
impacts mental health by increasing cognitive performance and well-being, and 
alleviating illnesses such as depression, attention deficit disorders, and Alzheimer’s; and 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation encourages physical activities by providing space 

for popular sports, hiking trails, swimming pools and many other activities designed to 
promote active lifestyles; and 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation is a leading provider of healthy meals, nutrition 

services and education; and 
 

WHEREAS, park and recreation programming and education activities, such as 
out- of-school time programming, youth sports and environmental education, are critical 
to childhood development; and 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation increases a community’s economic prosperity 

through increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, 
the attraction and retention of businesses, and crime reduction; and 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation is fundamental to the environmental well-being 

of our community; and 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, CHAIR 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation is essential and adaptable infrastructure that 

makes our communities resilient in the face of natural disasters and climate change; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, our parks and natural recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty 

of our community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature 
and recreate outdoors; and 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and 

Recreation Month; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Washington County recognizes the benefits derived from parks 
and recreation resources. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Washington County Board of 
Commissioners that July is recognized as Park and Recreation Month in Washington 
County.  
 

ADOPTED this 5th day of July, 2022. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
                                                     Tracey A. Johnson, Chair 

      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                    Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:   July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:        Department Information Update: Facilities 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Louis Boone, Facilities Director will speak to the Board on the County’s Facilities 
department including the many projects his staff is working on. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   4 
 
       DATE:    July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator  
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
At the Board meeting, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Washington County Tax Administrator will 
give the Board the Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report. 
 
Ms. Wilkins will need a motion for you to approve the Order to Collect for FY22-23.  
See attached. 
 
 
 



ORDER 
 

FOR COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

Fiscal Year 2022 – 2023 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 
 
TO:  SHERRI M. WILKINS   
 Tax Collector of Washington County 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set 
forth in the tax records filed in the office of Washington County Tax Collector and in the 
tax receipts herein delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise 
therein set forth.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of 
the respective taxpayers in the County of Washington, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require and enable you to levy on and sell any real or 
personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereon, in accordance with law.  
You are authorized to call upon the Sheriff of Washington County and his deputies to 
levy upon and sell personal property for unpaid taxes when you deem it to be advisable. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this 5th day of July, 2022. 
 
 

 
 
             

Tracey A. Johnson 
Chair 

 
 
             

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCCCC 
Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:   “In God We Trust” Motto in County Buildings, Mr. Rick Lanier, US Motto 

Committee  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Rick Lanier of the US Motto Committee contacted Commissioners Keyes and requested to 
talk to the Board regarding putting the motto “In God We Trust” on the outside of our 
Courthouse, in the Courtroom and in the Commissioners’ Room. 
 
See attachments. 









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO: 6 
 
       DATE:     July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Washington Regional Medical Center, Mr Frank Avignone 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Frank Avignone of the Washington Regional Medical Center spoke with Mr. Curtis Potter, 
CM/CA and requested to speak to the Commissioners to give an update  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:       Designation of Voting Delegate for NCACC Annual Conference and 

NCACC Legislative Goals Conference, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the 
Board 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Bennett received the attached email from the NCACC asking the Board to nominate a 
Conference attendee to be the voting delegate on behalf of Washington County at the NCACC 
Annual Conference being held in Cabarrus County August 10-13, 2022 and the NCACC 
Legislative Goals Conference being held in Wake County November 16-17, 2022. 
 
Please see attached. 
 



Good Afternoon County Managers and Clerks to the Board, 
  
In order to capture voting delegate designations for both the upcoming NCACC Annual 
Conference in August and NCACC Legislative Goals Conference in November, we are 
implementing a new process and asking your county to submit your voting delegate designation 
via this link. You will have the option to select one person to serve as the voting delegate for 
both conferences, if that is your preference. Click here to indicate who will serve as your 
voting delegates for NCACC Annual Conference and NCACC Legislative Goals 
Conference. 
  
Conference Details: 
NCACC Annual Conference: The NCACC’s 115th Annual Conference  Business Session will 
be held in Cabarrus County on Saturday, August 13, at 2 pm, with each county entitled to one 
vote on items that come before the membership, including the election of the NCACC Second 
Vice President. 
  
NCACC Legislative Goals Conference: The NCACC’s Legislative Goals Conference will be 
held over two days, November 16-17, in Wake County. Delegates will vote on the slate of goal 
proposals that have been thoroughly vetted with the final slate of proposals to be brought before 
the Association’s membership in November.  
  
NCACC Constitution, Article VI: 
“On all questions, including the election of officers, each county represented shall be entitled to 
one vote, which shall be the majority expression of the delegates of that county.  The vote of any 
county in good standing may be cast by any one of its County Commissioners who is present at 
the time the vote is taken; provided, if no commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by 
another county official, elected or appointed, who holds elective office or an appointed position 
in the county whose vote is being cast and who is formally designated by the Board of County 
Commissioners. These provisions shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association.  A 
county in good standing is defined as one which has paid the current year’s dues.” 
  
Please submit your voting delegate designations by Friday, August 5, close of business. Should 
you have any questions, please contact Alisa Cobb at alisa.cobb@ncacc.org. 
  
Thank you, 
 

 

Alisa Cobb 
Operations Assistant 
Phone (919) 715-2685 
www.ncacc.org 

 

https://2i4mk1jf64z.typeform.com/22VotingDelegat
https://2i4mk1jf64z.typeform.com/22VotingDelegat
mailto:alisa.cobb@ncacc.org
http://www.ncacc.org/


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Bennett would like to ask the Commissioners’ to appoint Ms. Fetima Moore, HR 
Specialist as a replacement for Mr. Harry White (who just retired) to the Employee of the 
Quarter Committee. 
 
Ms. Moore has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 





















































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from June 2022—see attachment 

 
 Statistics Reports from June 2022—see attachment 

 
 Register of Deeds Rollup Summary—see attachment 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
July 5, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
It was asked what recreation’s strength is.  The greatest strength we have is the Lord and prayer. 

So many times we are not the team predicted to win but prayer mixed with team work we are 
productive and come out on top.  Our greatest weakness is when we don’t pray, play as a team, 
or we don’t practice sportsmanship then we are not productive.  

This is not just on the court but also in our community.   

On June 17 thru 19 2022 we will be going to Raleigh for our State Tournament in hopes of 
bringing back the gold.  But it is most important that we play team ball and have good 
sportsmanship.  If we do that we are still winners.  

We are registering for Football Tackle and Flag, baton flag turners, and cheerleading, on 
Monday, Thursday from 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm and Saturday from 11:00 am to 1:00 pm.  Football 
camp is Friday and Saturday July 1st and 2nd 2022 from 9:00 am to 12:00 pm.  Mrs. Renee is 
making some flyers and putting it on line.   In my next report I will let you all know our 
tournament results.  

 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Elections Office has filing going on right now for Soil and Water Conservation. It will end 
on July 5 at noon. I am also packing my Election’s items for the move to the Roper Annex 
Building. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Summer Reading Program: 

• The SRP kicked off on June 22nd at 2:00 PM with a keychain craft (13 participants) 
hosted by the Washington County Library and will run until August 2nd with one program 
a week. 

• Susan Swain will host a “Sock Puppet” Creation Project on June 29th; this program is 
open to fifteen registered participants only. 

• July will kick off with another program hosted by the Washington County Library with a 
nature scavenger hunt provided by the NC Department of Natural and Cultural 
Resources. 

• We are hosting a weekly “Friday Afternoon Movie;” this series kicked off on June 24th 
with a 2:00 PM showing of Disney/Pixar’s Finding Nemo. (21 participants) 

• We have added an ice cream social to our schedule to commemorate the end of Summer 
Reading. 

• For SRP and Movie Schedules, please visit our Facebook or stop by the library to pick up 
a hard copy. 

 
Grassroots Programming: 

• The Stanley Baird Group kicked off our Grassroots Series on June 3rd at 6:00 PM with a 
Jazz concert open to the public (80+ participants) 

• L. Jamal Walton hosted a “Creating Comics” Program on June 20th – 21st for ages 16+; 
out of the ten participants who reserved a space, only 2 showed up both days with 3 
showing up for 1 day. 

• Dr. Melinda Ratchford hosted a “Titanic: Ship of Dreams” presentation on June 22nd and 
there were two people in attendance. 

• Donna Washington hosted a storytelling program to end our series on June 24th at noon 
with 13 participants. 

 
Other Library Business: 

• Storytime attendance has taken off with the start of the SRP; on June 22nd, there were 17 
participants! These in-person sessions will take place every Wednesday at 10:30 AM 
with a craft to follow. 

• We will issue reminder cards to participants who sign up for programs requiring a sign-
up because we have run into the problem of people “forgetting” they signed up. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
Rebecca Liverman, FCS and County Director 
 

● I taught ServSafe for 17 food service employees. These students brought different 
perspectives to the classroom as some were school nutrition workers, some worked at the 
nursing home and others were employed by local restaurants. This is the first real 
ServSafe class I have been able to teach since 2020. 

 
● For the month of June, we are hosting a 30-day water challenge. We have 31 

participants. This is part of an FCS Innovation Grant from NCSU. We will provide a full 
report on the data in our next update.  

 
 
 
Jalynne Waters - Agriculture Agent 
 

● The Northeast District of the NC Association of Agricultural County 
Agents hosted this year’s NCAACA State Meeting in Dare County. I 
worked with the Hyde and Martin county agents to plan, coordinate, 
and implement a successful cookout for 150 agriculture agents from 
across the state. We treated them to a low country boil with a view of 
the sound! 

 
 
 
 
 
 

● June is typically when calls start coming in to measure wheat for the NC 
Wheat Yield Contest. This contest gives growers the chance to learn how 
their inputs (fertilizer, irrigation, row spacing, etc.) are affecting wheat 
yield, and how it compares to other wheat contest entrants across the 
state. County agents act as supervisors for this event and work to 
measure the distance harvested and calculate an official yield.  

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
● Because we had a drier than normal fall and winter, there are reports 

of the Chowan River and Albemarle Sound having higher than 
normal salt content readings. There are several farmers that irrigate 
using sound and river water in Chowan, and a few in Washington 
County. Most field crops do not grow well in salty conditions, but a 
few crops are more sensitive than others. Peanuts are a salt-sensitive 
crop, and are a common crop on the sandy soils along the sound. 
Using an Electric Conductivity meter (a way to measure salt 
content), I am able to help growers monitor the salt content of 
their irrigation water so they don’t burn their crops or ruin their 
soils with irrigation water that is too salty. 
 
 

 
Beth Stanley Jackson  
4-H Extension Agent  
 

❖ Washington County 4-H’ers, along with other youth from across North Carolina, 
gathered in Raleigh June 14-16 for Citizenship North Carolina Focus.   The youth 
spent three days creating connections, learning about civic engagement, and deepening 
their understanding of state and local governments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

❖ The Northeast District Acitvity Day Public Speaking and Demonstration competition 
was held in Currituck County on Friday, June 17.  Representing Washington County 
was Tayah Simpson and Lizzie Phillips.  Tayah’s presentation titled “The Arts of My 
Community” earned her a silver medal in the Expressive Arts and Communication 
Category.  She has the opportunity to compete at the State Level at NC State University 
in July.  Lizzie’s presentation focused on the 4-H Embryology Program and the parts of 
the egg.  Lizzie took home bronze! Both young ladies did a phenomenal job!  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

❖ To close out the month of June, we have twelve 4-H’ers plus myself camping at the 
Eastern 4-H Center this week.  We will be participating in rock wall climbing, paddle 
boarding, crabbing, swimming, gaga ball, archery, team challenge course, plus so much 
more! Camping locally is a change for us, but the youth are loving it so far! 

   

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
Following is the monthly update to the County Manager and County Commissioners of ongoing 
work in the Washington County Tax Office this report includes activity for June: 



 
 

 

1. Receiving requests for tax scrolls (mortgage companies) and questions about the 
tax bills, we are letting them know the information will be available in July and tax 
bills will be mailed in July. 

2. Darlene Harrison will finish the processing of the requests she has received from 
mortgage companies for tax bill copies for our 2022 bills, she notates each 
property.   

3. Will finish entering the new construction/other changes into our assessment 
program before the tax bills are created.  

4. A foreclosure sale will be held on June 30th.  We continue to collect payments for 
accounts that have been referred for foreclosure – every time we get a payment, 
receive correspondence (such as the need to add costs) or are notified in any way 
about a property in foreclosure we notify ZLS and update the accounts in 
foreclosure.  As information is received from Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) we 
update the accounts.  We also handle phone calls, emails or visits from persons 
whose property are in foreclosure and persons interested in buying property in 
foreclosure. 

5. Denise processed the Insolvents, Refunds and Releases reports. 
6. Denise processed the monthly reports from NCVTS.  
7. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions.  
8. I worked on taxpayers’ requests for review of their properties.    
9. Christal has been calling taxpayers who have delinquent accounts in an effort to get 

payments.   
10. The tax office staff is working on assessments and account updates in preparation 

of the new fiscal year and mailing tax bills in July.    
11. Receiving a few calls for Republic Services but we are directing them to the 

county’s website and the landfill.  We are very pleased with the transition of 
Republic Service requests to the landfill.  

12. Received the billing files for the Albemarle and Pungo River drainage districts.  
Felesha entered the information into our software.   

13. Several tax office staff will sit in on a webinar this week regarding “Best Practices 
for Files and Filing…”, presented by the NC Dept of Natural & Cultural 
Resources, Division of Archives & Records.  

14. Each Monday, I sit in on an Assessor’s Town Hall Zoom meeting.  Different topics 
are discussed from what conferences might be going on to what each office may be 
experiencing (issues that they have, differences in what each county deals with). A 
wide variety of subjects.  

15. After month-end on June 30th, Darlene Fikes and I will be processing the fiscal year-end  
closeout.   

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

1. Permits Issued   21 
2. Inspections   37 
3. Plan Reviews     4 
4. Map/Plot Reviews    2 



 
 

 

5. Out of office -     5 days (Allen)     2 days (Connie)       1 Holiday 
6. Worked Bear Festival with CERT           June 4 
7. WEBINAR – CERT Forum                        June 9    6:30 – 7:30 
8. Planning Board Met                        June 16 
9. Hazard Mitigation Advisory Committee     June 22 – online 
10. Communication with Department of Insurance regarding ISO inspections for all county 

fire departments 
11. Met with Town of Plymouth zoning re: restoration of power (residential) and with water 

department for electrical inspection 
12. Work continues on NFIP/Floodplain Administration documentation for annual inspection 

– working with all municipalities as well as county area. 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
It has been business as usual in the office.  Nothing out of the ordinary to report. 
The following Vital Record Events occurred in Washington County for the Period 1/1/2022 to 
6/24/2022  
 
Birth = 0 
Deaths = 53 with 4 related to COVID-19 
Marriages = 19 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 

Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 

Solid Waste 
 

The landfill took in 93.19 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 19.19 Tons of Inert Debris, 
1.83 Tons of Scrap Metal,   51.18 Tons of Construction Debris and 3.87 tons of Scrap 
Tires this month. 

 
 



 
 

 

Water Department 
 

Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 13.8 (MG). The average daily usage 
was .445 MG. We served 2657 accounts, billing customers for 7.477 (MG) of water. 
 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
Detention:  
 

 

1. FEDERAL LOCK MAN CAME TO FIX OUTSIDE BASEMENT DOOR 06/07/2022 @ 
8:17AM 

2. UNIFIRST 06/10/2022 TO PICK UP CLOTHES. 
3. UNFIRST CAME 06/17/2022 TO PICK UP CLOTHES. 
4. UNFIRST CAME 06/24/2022 TO PICK UP CLOTHES. 
5. SHOWER KEEPS GOING IN AND OUT. 06/24/2022 
6. UNFIRST CAME 06/30/2022 TO PICK UP CLOTHES 

 
No report submitted from Sheriff’s Office or E911. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. The majority of this month I have been involved in preparing and coordinating the 
installation of the new 911 furniture, installation of the new fiber connection needed for the  
new radios, the radio installation and setting up a temporary 911 Center in the Jury room.  
The only piece left in updating equipment is the NetClock. Anna has budgeted this in the  
FY22-23 year. 

2. Discussions with the State 911 Board on changes that need to be made in the GIS 
GEOComm system. 

3. Work with Fuel Master, telephone company, Knapp Brabble and Mary Moscato concerning 
the connection of the fuel pump outside and the computer. 

4. Meeting with State Board of Elections, Beaufort Community College, Dora Bell and Mary 
Moscato concerning the County Board of Elections move and internet connectivity. 

5. Review VC3 VoIP Contract and Work Order. Attend multiple meetings. 
6. Troubleshoot issues with 911 and MSAG. 
7. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
8. Attend Departmental meeting. 
9. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
10. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
11. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
 



 
 

 

Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 
 

1. Price of gas, jet fuel costs continue to hurt the business travel and the general aviation 
sector. Our traffic is off approx... 80%. 

 
2. Replaced 2 runway Globes. 

 
3. I’m losing ground with trying to keep up with cutting grass. 

 
4. Outside Credit Card unit on pedestal working. Having to tweak items that keep showing 

up on FMU. 
5. Future Projects:                                                                                             

a.  Fuel Farm:  Have not had time to work on fuel farm. Have sump pumps for the 
av/gas and jet fuel tanks. Will have to get piping for each tank to be able to install 
sump pumps. 

b. Avgas reel motor not working. Have to find problem so I can fix it.     
c. Jet reel motor stopped working also. Have to find problem, fix it.  
d. Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway that has sunken in or washed away to 

meet FAA safety standards.                                                            
e. Runway: Need to put week killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.     
f. Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway.                                
g.  Need to cut and weed around runway and taxiway lights.                           
h. Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA 

safety standards.                                                                 
i. Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear on 

airport equipment.                                                              
j. Repair Beacon  
k. Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)           
l. Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)  
m. Have to replace drive shaft and u-joints on wood’s 3240 mower.  

 
And a number of other things.                 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Painting entire building on the inside of the Roper Annex. 
2. Cutting grass and weed eating around some of the county buildings. 
3. Put together furniture and desks. 
4. Moved furniture, desks, file cabinets out of 911 office so the new furniture and 

equipment can be installed. 
5. Installed ceiling tiles, light bulbs, receptacles, flush valves, handles, door knobs, ballasts, 

etc.  
6. Vacuum, dust, sweep and mop floors, empty trash, wash windows, clean and disinfect the 

buildings. 
 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 
None to report. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 31 30 44 44 48 40 44 54 31 0 475 475
Male 41 37 19 19 35 32 35 24 21 32 21 316
Female 7 1 9 7 5 9 10 15 11 7 5 86
Male 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 3 3 4 4 3 3 1 12 15 5 56 56
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

402

2

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

SMCP

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

96%

0%0%0%0%0%4%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 172 149 160 155 112 123 127 135 1581
WC Transported 90 122 109 120 102 113 115 78 89 80 110 1128
WC Refusals 39 43 45 52 47 47 40 34 34 47 23 451

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 3 2 0 4 4 2 4 0 23
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 87 95 84 73 88 81 123 117 962
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 7 5 12 6 10 10 13 16 123
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 3 5 6 4 1 6 4 2 52

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 53 48 44 44 39 39 48 47 545
TC Transported 43 48 42 38 35 33 34 22 30 36 33 394
TC Refusals 19 17 14 15 13 11 10 17 9 12 14 151

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 0 7
HC Transported 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 6
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

37%

26%

11%

13%

9%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   2,726.40$   1,225.00$   925.00$       2,115.00$   4,280.00$   3,010.20$   2,305.40$   1,313.92$   $36,299.42
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       75.00$         25.00$         25.00$         150.00$       275.00$       125.00$       -$             $1,000.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       375.00$       425.00$       75.00$         275.00$       300.00$       300.00$       300.00$       675.00$       $3,150.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             275.00$       275.00$       -$             225.00$       -$             $900.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         -$             -$             $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $3,176.40 $1,650.00 $1,025.00 $2,690.00 $5,005.00 $3,585.20 $2,955.40 $1,988.92 $0.00 $41,369.42

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

88%

2%
8% 2%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 489 608 0 0 0 440 0 0 0 0 2491
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 65 47 50 264
New Particpants 2 5 1 8
Center-Sponsored Events 100 212 255 109 676
Special Events 15 212 25 82 25 359
Caregiver's Support Group 5 4 4 4 17
Exercise Room 24 50 30 54 24 182
Dance Fitness 10 9 19
Yoga 32 20 10 32 32 126
Chair Exercise 90 114 54 54 57 369
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 35 30 35 176
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 18 20 24 119
Craft Room 40 36 30 30 136
Drop-in Activities 40 40
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1399 1391 1466 1085 817 920 975 0 0 0 0 9271
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 402 502 157 99 138 152 2145
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 998 989 964 928 718 782 823 7126
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 179 272 252 323 334 247 248 274

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    147.00$   150.00$  -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  489.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     115.00$    90.00$     355.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     32.00$      60.00$     134.00$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

30%

16%

1%8%1%
6%

17%

8%

0%
5%

6% 2%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 1051 898 988 1121 928 892 908 889 1316 0 10663
Law Enforcement 655 640 820 683 780 880 703 705 728 723 1057 8374

Animal Control 54 64 53 59 159 64 46 66 41 41 103 750
EMS 109 150 178 156 49 177 179 121 139 125 156 1539

Reported Incidents 85 38 48 42 48 55 58 35 57 38 60 564
Total Arrests 23 5 17 8 10 18 14 11 20 10 22 158

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 8 6 8 11 8 8 7 4 7 71
Felony Arrests 20 4 9 2 2 7 6 3 13 6 15 87

Total Papers Served 24 37 48 37 43 50 32 35 57 34 45 442
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 2 5 8 5 0 15 3 5 51

Civil Papers Served 24 31 46 35 38 42 27 35 42 31 40 391
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 3 15 3 14 12 15 46 25 15 189
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 0 2 1 1 1 4 3 4 19

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 3 13 2 13 12 14 22 22 11 150
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 18 26 15 16 15 52 35 28 240
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 38 0 12 11 7 121

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 21 8 20 15 46 35 28 17 24 266

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

79%

7%

14%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

YTD TOTALS

564

71 87
51

391

19

150

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      220,137.75$  319,977.93$  1,607,792.25$  569,027.17$      152,638.26$  131,947.77$  146,411.12$  30,913.51$   7,173,702.91$                    
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               (63,261.74)$                        
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             371.79$         332.08$         1,544.52$          278.18$             1,277.39$      298.08$         224.79$         82.54$           7,505.54$                           
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   178.95$         -$               6.05$                 2,745.57$          4,446.69$      5,393.56$      7,432.04$      2,267.29$      22,470.15$                         
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        2,471.93$      3,646.45$      18,834.89$        6,870.42$          1,822.42$      1,431.32$      2,073.26$      353.82$         84,395.86$                         
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               (744.50)$                             
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 1.12$             3.96$             18.42$               3.93$                 15.22$           3.53$             2.36$             0.81$             85.96$                                
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   2.13$             -$               -$                   31.19$               49.82$           58.46$           261.99$         452.14$         855.73$                              
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        26,220.27$    34,340.45$    27,594.45$        16,645.88$        28,913.80$    32,305.73$    31,370.65$    13,992.98$   345,719.91$                       
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               42.48$           100.26$         43.48$               44.18$               138.96$         91.88$           23.85$           48.31$           729.59$                              
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          6,150.77$      6,105.60$      4,966.97$          3,780.45$          6,811.14$      10,031.89$    7,912.03$      3,710.25$      69,339.79$                         
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             245.68$         284.16$         337.30$             195.48$             213.91$         300.03$         324.58$         138.26$         3,239.44$                           
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 0.97$             0.49$             0.14$                 0.55$                 1.33$             0.57$             0.65$             0.80$             7.82$                                   
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             242.68$         286.13$         406.99$             188.10$             245.97$         445.31$         517.41$         238.52$         3,757.19$                           
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        1,167.95$      -$               -$                   (4.08)$                -$               (265.00)$        -$               -$               (651.94)$                             
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          5,178.70$      2,225.01$      3,715.26$          3,528.20$          5,853.34$      11,116.06$    13,803.02$    7605.53 60,684.46$                         

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     262,413.17$  367,302.52$  1,665,260.72$  603,335.22$     202,428.25$  193,159.19$  210,357.75$  59,804.76$   -$  7,707,836.17$                    

Initiated 10 10 32 16                   14 16 0 0 0 0 98
Amount 5,994.72$          7,438.51$          37,584.03$    9,785.57$      24,738.43$        11,093.59$        $0 $0 $0 $0 96,634.85$                         
Satisfied/Cancelled 2 22 14                   11 5 0 0 0 0 54
Amount 3,289.05$          59,269.06$    11,176.11$    16,883.37$        8,901.77$          $0 $0 $0 $0 99,519.36$                         

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        62,915.41 $73,379.97 69,762.77 73,853.59 79,186.70 77,452.34$   593,265.28$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        52,698.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,153.86$        58,637.27$    43,077.39$    22,352.48$    1,069,798.61$                    
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            300.00$         -$               -$                   (95.92)$              -$               -$               -$               (670.92)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        52,998.61$    56,421.75$    170,600.81$      88,057.94$        45,522.40$    43,077.39$    22,352.48$    2,231,712.82$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$               -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 40,486.46$        8,171.27$          14,087.13$        21,150.43$    8,369.75$      57,646.56$        31,453.76$        2,868.71$      1,334.27$      4,322.48$      $224.90 190,115.72$                       

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         2,310.80$      4,604.82$      521.72 67,517.88$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          3,113.94$      2,308.21$      33,606.90$        6,771.98$          172.28$         2,310.80$      4,604.82$      521.72$         -$  67,517.88$                         

3,853,089.11$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  339,676.15$  497,317.64$  2,000,494.96$  799,381.67$     324,845.23$  239,881.65$  320,824.23$  138,003.72$ -$  10,790,447.87$                  

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 72,370

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 7564 7256 6785 7921 6811 7049 8002 7327 75,509

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    64,656$    64,668$  64,716$  64,920$  65,088$    64,992$    65,160$      65,352$      713,111$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    33,800$    32,188$  33,943$  62,790$  48,529$    31,655$    40,001$      45,890$     478,712$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      1,820$      1,295$    840$        1,295$    1,820$      1,645$      1,400$        1,610$       17,080$          

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 16 3 7 12 19 21 5 16 131                  

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      1,820$      358$        722$        923$        2,990$      4,108$      514$           1,723$     20,165.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 12.3 11.9 12 12 13 12 10 13 13.800 138.000

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 2629 2629 2631 2639 2646 2642 2649 2657 28,997
New taps 4 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 9

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 55.46 53.63 64.74 35.17 44.71 63.88 36.53 93.19 665.24
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 142.79 19.73 0 0.22 0.33 100.69 9.88 19.19 354.58
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 1.42 0.29 0.95 0.87 0.58 1.74 1.40 1.83 9.97
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 79.63 32.02 114.66 39.82 96.8 63.54 64.43 51.18 814.66
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 3.72 2.08 1.20 10.86 3.88 9.15 3.7 3.87 51.19
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   4,844.65$   4,844.65$    4,844.65$      53,291.15$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

35%

19%0%

43%

3%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
   
       DATE:     July 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

June 6, 2022 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
June 6, 2022 at 6:00 PM in person and by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software for Facebook 
Live Streaming in the Cooperative Extension Conference Room, 128 E. Water Street, Plymouth, 
NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, William R. “Bill” 
Sexton, Jr. and Julius Walker, Jr. were present in the room.  Also present were County 
Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance 
Officer Missy Dixon.  
 

Chair Johnson called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Walker gave the invocation 
and County Manager Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: None. 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 

approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to be 
discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes for May 2 & 16, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Session 
Minutes for April 4, 2022 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) ABC Board Budget Amendment for 2021-2022; ABC Board Proposed Budget for 

2022-2023; Adoption of County Travel Reimbursement Form for ABC Board 
d) Opioid Project Ordinance/Budget Amendment 
e) Auditor Engagement Letter 
f) JCPC Membership 

    
Commissioner Keyes made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC FORUM: None. 
 
EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: Chair Johnson read the nomination of the Employee 

of the Quarter, Ms. Vanessa Joyner, Senior Center Director.  
 

“The Employee of the Quarter for June 2022 was hired on October 13, 2004 as Code 
Enforcement Officer in Emergency Management. She served in that role until January 5, 2015 
when she became the Senior Center Director. 
 
Vanessa Joyner has worked for Washington County for over 17 years.  For 10 years, she worked 
with Ann Keyes in Emergency Management.  For the past 7 years, she has been at the Senior 
Center. She has also worked 2 ½ years in the past for the Water Department. 
 
From Emergency Management, she is a part of the CERT (Community Emergency Response 
Team) and is a qualified CERT trainer also.  She has passed the highest levels in ICS (Incident 
Command System).   



DRAFT 

 
Vanessa has graduated from the Ann Johnson Institute for Senior Center Directors.  She is 
qualified to tach Tai Chi Chronic Disease Self Management, Chronic Pain Self Management, 
Powerful Tools for Caregivers and AARP Know It and Control It.  She has been certified as a 
NAFTA Fitness Trainer, HIIT Trainer (High Intensity Interval Training), Support Group 
Facilitator, and Senior Planet Technology Class.  She teaches Chair Exercise, Fitness Workout 
and substitute teach for Line Dancing.  She also teaches craft ideas to the seniors.” 

 
Chair Johnson read the Certificate of Recognition and stated that Ms. Joyner will also 

receive a check for $50. 
 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:  
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to re-convene as the Board of Equalization 

and Review.  Commissioner Keyes seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 

Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator, told the Board there were no appeals as of 
today. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn the Board of Equalization & 

Review.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Chair Johnson announced that a citizen had just arrived to speak in Public Forum so she 
allowed it.  

 
Mr. Jimmy Sutton 407 Boush Street, Roper, stated that Roper has become very lawless 

and needs some help.  Roper needs some patrolling.  4-wheelers are on public streets--children 
following parents in excess of 70 mph—a father leading a child— 6-9 yr. olds riding motorized 
vehicles.  Mr. Sutton said the lawlessness is absurd.  They do pay taxes and do deserve some 
patrol.  He said he has called for patrols before. He said he understands the decrease in 
manpower and that you can’t get blood from a turnip, but Roper needs some support.  Mr. Sutton 
said he will be glad to have a private meeting with anyone who would like to discuss this further. 

 
 RESOLUTION 2022-021:  APPROVING AND ACCEPTING SALE OF 
REAL PROPERTY AT WESTON ROAD (SR1126/SR1164), CRESWELL, NC:  Mr. 
Potter went over the following Resolution. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked was this a Zacchaeus foreclosure.  Ms. Wilkins 
said yes it was.  Commissioner Sexton asked if Zacchaeus was still paying for 
themselves.  Ms. Wilkins said yes they are.  Ms. Dixon, Finance Office, agreed with Ms. 
Wilkins.  Commissioner Sexton asked for Ms. Wilkins to let the Board know if that 
changes. 
 

Commissioner Sexton made the motion to approve Resolution 2022-021 Approving 
and Accepting the Sale of the Real Property on Weston Road, Creswell.  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  SALE OF THE COMMERCE BUILDING:  Mr. Potter 
spoke to the Board on this and went over the background information below. 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 Commissioner Keyes made the motion to open the public hearing on the 
Sale of the Commerce Building.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Sam Styons, consultant for Triple Waves, Inc. and Mr. Ervin Shperdheja, 
President of Triple Waves, Inc. spoke to the Board. 
 
 Mr. Styons said Mr. Shperdheja came to see him about 4-5 years ago looking 
for property in our area for their company. Mr. Styons wanted it made clear that he is a 
consultant not an owner.  Triple Waves, Inc. is one (1) of their companies.  They also 
own OBX Cleaning. They have been in business for over 20 years. They employee about 
40 people. Hotels are their clients. They are ready to partner with nursing homes and 
hospitals after their expansion.  
 
 Mr. Styons introduced Mr. Shperdheja.  Mr. Shperdheja thanked Mr. Potter and 
the Commissioners for taking the time to let them layout the new building. They want to 
bring best technology to us and create jobs in our area. Triple Waves, Inc. is getting lots 
of contracts so they need more space.  
 
 Mr. Shperdheja said they plan to hire 50 – 70 employees (hopefully local 
people) and at the new location they will be using county water.  Mr. Styons said they 
liked the Commerce Building site because of the county sewer and water and they will 
have a gas line run out there.  Mr. Styons said it would cost about $350,000 to finish 
building (it needs a floor and a loading dock) along with handicap ramps in front Then 
they will be putting $500,000 - $1,000,000 in equipment in the building. 
 
 Mr. Shperdheja said the average pay would be $12/$15 per/hr. for most workers 
and $18/$20 per hour for techs. 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked about the timeframe of when they hope to start 
making the improvements to the building and be in it.  Mr. Shperdheja said would like to 
start improvements in the Fall of 2022 and open next Spring 2023.  Commissioner Sexton 
said one of his goals when he returned as a Commissioner was to get the Commerce 
Center Building sold. He is glad to see the progress. 
  
 Commissioner Walker said he thinks this will help employment in Washington 
County.  Commissioner Keyes agreed. 
 
 Mr. Potter said essential information has been presented and that staff’s 
recommendation would be to direct staff to bring back a Resolution to the Board at the 
July meeting approving the transfer of the Commerce Center to the high bidder (Triple 
Waves, Inc.). 
 
 Commissioner Sexton made the motion to close the public hearing on the 
sale of the Commerce Center Building.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Sexton made the motion to direct staff to prepare a 
resolution to approve the transfer of the Commerce Center Building to the final 



DRAFT 

high bidder (subject to applicable terms and conditions to be discussed with the 
County Attorney in Closed Session and or/otherwise established by the Board). 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  PUBLIC UTILITIES:  Mr. 
Doremus Luton, Public Utilities Director and Mr. Lee Sasser, Water Plant Operator gave 
the following presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
 Commissioner Sexton asked about the calcium buildup.  Mr. Sasser said the 
County doesn’t treat for that.  That’s what comes from the Castle Haynes aquifer.  Mr. 
Sasser said the County tried water softening in the past but that caused other issues and 
the County would need new equipment to try it again. Commissioner Sexton asked if the 
County’s water tanks have the calcium buildup.  Mr. Sasser said no. Mr. Sasser went on 
to say folks have trouble with their hot water heater because parts of the element are 
deteriorating in the hot water heater.  
 



DRAFT 

 Mr. Sasser said that the County has to do lead/copper samples.  Mr. Sasser also 
said the County is constantly flushing water. The County has five (5) automatic flushing 
valves. 
 
 Mr. Potter noted said there is a little over .5M$ for utility projects in the budget 
(due to using ARP money) and the County serves 2,680 customers. 
 
 BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE WASHINGTON COUNTY FY23 BUDGET:   Mr. Potter 
went over the following information. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 Mr. Potter said the threshold was changed from $500 to $999.99 for Purchase Orders.  Also, a 
change was made that the Budget Officer/County Manager can give the Finance Officer the authority to 
make minor changes to PO’s that the County Manager has already signed. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps said he appreciated all the hard work that went into the budget process 
this year. Commissioner Walker agreed with Commissioner Phelps.  
 
 Chair Johnson said she had one question regarding the EMS billing and NCACC cost 
reimbursements.  Ms. Dixon said there may be a partial filing for those. 
 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the Budget Ordinance for the 
Washington County FY23 Budget.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
  

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT, BUDGET AMENDMENTS/BUDGET 
TRANSFERS:   Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer discussed the attached budget amendments/ 
transfers to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

Discussion ensued regarding Zacchaeus and their rates. 
 



DRAFT 

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget amendments and 
transfers as presented above.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
Items from Mr. Potter:  
County Assembly Day is on June 14 in Raleigh 
NCACC Legislative Goals—need to start considering the County’s goals so they can be 

submitted to the NCACC 
Aviation Advisory Committee on June 21 in the Commissioners’ Room @ 5:30 pm 
 
Washington County Schools (WCS) Update: There is a large group that is continuing to 

work on this project. The School Board would like to keep the Early College site in Creswell 
rather than move it to Roper as was agreed to by both Boards last fall.  It is a more expensive 
option. Mr. Potter said he is working with the school system on the funding shortfall.  WCS 
would like to have a joint meeting, possibly June 27 or 29 and will have a regular board meeting 
on July 5.  Please check your calendars.  Also, the group is going to tour a Jones County school 
tomorrow.  It is similar to what we want to build here. Everyone is trying to keep moving things 
forward. 

 
Golden Leaf staff will be here on Wednesday afternoon to discuss opportunities for 

funding that they might can bring to the table for Washington County. 
 
Ms. Dixon shared that the Medicaid cost refund from 2020 was $418,997.  Washington 

County has received $2,000,013 since the inception of the program.  The Debt Set-Off for 2021 
was $39,208.  The County has received $1,107,000 since the County has been participating in 
this program. 

 
Commissioner Walker thanked Mr. Luton for helping when he had a flood at his house. 

He and Jason did a great job.  
 
Chair Johnson said she attended the NC Black Bear Festival and it was marvelous. She 

said she appreciates all the time that went into it and all of the volunteers that helped to make it 
successful. She really enjoyed it. She will be at a leadership academy in DC next week and 
unable to attend County Assembly Day.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Sexton made a motion to establish a Senior 
Project Manager position in the County Manager’s Office at grade 20 and authorized the 
County Manager to fill the position with the County’s current LNCF, Mr. Richard 
Livingston.  Commissioner Phelps seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Ms. Bennett noted that she did some research based on the request at the last meeting 

from Centennial Housing to be tax exempt.  According to GS 105-278.8, non-profit hospitals are 



DRAFT 

allowed to be tax exempt, if they file for an exemption in a timely manner (before the deadline).  
Centennial Housing did not submit their filing for an exemption before the deadline. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Keyes 

seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

             Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda July 5, 2022
	7-5-2022 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item b) Tax Refunds and Releases and Insolvent Accounts
	RESO2022-023 Appointing Review Officer 2022
	BOCC MEMO re FY23 Fee Schedule Changes & 2.5 COLA for 20220705 mtg
	Statute for appoint or re-appoint Tax Assessor - Collector 2022
	FPIC Audit Letter 6-24-22
	RESO2022-024 July is Parks and Recreation Month
	7-5-2022 Item 2 (public forum)
	7-5-2022 Item 3 Dept. Info--Facilities
	7-5-2022 Item 4 Tax Collector's Annual Settlement Report
	Order to Collect FY 22-23
	7-5-2022 Item 5 In God We Trust Motto
	Commissioners room motto
	Courthouse-Sheriff side motto
	Courtroom motto
	7-5-2022 Item 6 Washington Regional Medical Center Update
	7-5-2022 Item 7 NCACC Voting Delegate
	Item 7 Voting Delegate for NCACC meeting
	7-5-2022 Item 8 Boards & Committees
	7-5-2022 Item 9 Finance Officer's Report
	Item 8 BA-BT
	Item 8 Financial Reports
	7-5-2022 Item 10 Other Items
	Reports for 7-5-22 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	Item 10 ROD Summary
	7-5-2022 Item 11 Closed Session
	6-6-2022 minutes



